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Mess, Camie

From: Mess, Camie
Sent: Friday, March 22, 2019 3:59 PM
To: Whitney Hudson (whudson@bdarchitects.com)
Cc: Werner, Jeffrey B
Subject: RE: February BAR Action - 600 West Main Street

The below information is correct. Sorry about that. 
 
Cheers, 
Camie 
 

From: Mess, Camie  
Sent: Friday, March 22, 2019 3:56 PM 
To: Whitney Hudson (whudson@bdarchitects.com) <whudson@bdarchitects.com> 
Cc: Werner, Jeffrey B <wernerjb@charlottesville.org> 
Subject: February BAR Action - 600 West Main Street 
 
March 22, 2019  
  
Certificate of Appropriateness Application 
BAR 16-01-04 
512-514, 600 West Main Street  
Tax Parcel 290007000, 290006000, and 290008000 
Heirloom West Main Development LLC, Owner/Applicant 
Amendments to the COA 
 
Dear Applicant,  
  
The above referenced project was discussed before a meeting of the City of Charlottesville Board of Architectural Review 
(BAR) on March 13, 2019. The following action was taken:  

Motion: Schwarz having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City Design 
Guidelines for New Construction, I move to find that the proposed window glazing satisfy the BAR’s 
criteria and are compatible with these properties and other properties in the West Main Street ADC 
District, and that the BAR approves the application for the window glazing as submitted. Lahendro 
seconded. Approved (5-0-1, with Ball abstained.) 
 
Motion: Gastinger moved having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City 
Design Guidelines for New Construction, I move to approve the metal panel, but deny the on-site mockup 
which did not include the final color pallet selection. The metal panels satisfy the BAR’s criteria and are 
compatible with these properties and other properties in the West Main Street ADC District, and that the 
BAR approves the metal panel as submitted. Lahendro seconded. Approved (3-2-1, with Miller and 
Schwarz opposed, and Ball abstained).  
 
It should be noted that in order to obtain their Certificate of Appropriateness the applicant needs to 
provide the BAR with an accurate mock-up panel in the field for final color pallet approval. 

 
If you would like to hear the specifics of the discussion, the meeting video is on-line at: 
http://charlottesville.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=2&clip_id=1352 
 
If you have any questions, please contact me at 434-970-3998 or messc@charlottesville.org.  
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Sincerely,  
Camie Mess 
 
 
Camie Mess 
Assistant Historic Preservation and Design Planner             
City of Charlottesville 
Phone: 434.970.3398  
Email: messc@charlottesville.org 
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CITY OF CHARLOTTESVILLE 
BOARD OF ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW 
STAFF REPORT  
February 20, 2019 snowed out; makeup date March 13, 2019 
 
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
 

  
Background 
510 West Main Street 
Vacant. 
 
512-514 West Main Street 
Built by Andrew Hartnagle in 1884 and known as the Hartnagle-Witt House, it was originally a tenement 
house. Constructed in 1949, the single-story addition on the front originally functioned as The Waffle 
Shop and is currently home to the Blue Moon Diner. 
 
600 West Main Street 
Built by James Hawkins in 1873 and known as the Hawkins-Perry House, it originally functioned as a 
rental house. In 1931, new owner Cecil Perry added to the front the single-story market, which currently 
operates as a convenience store.  
 
Both 512-514 and 600 are contributing structures in the West Main Street ADC District. The original 
residential structures (behind the commercial additions) are the only, late-19th century, vernacular 
dwellings remaining along West Main Street. (Historic Surveys attached.) 
 
Prior BAR Actions (See appendix) 
 
Application 
Applicant submitted: 

• Bushman Dreyfus submittal dated January 15, 2019: glass memo (page 1), glass manufacturing 
specifics (page 2-5). Material glass samples, on-site mock-up panel  

 
Request for: 

• change in the window gazing to 68 VLT because of manufacturing constraints   
• final approval on the metal panels (a mock up can be seen on site) 

 
Discussion and Recommendations 
The BAR should discuss if the revised the window glazing of 68VLT instead of 70VLT is appropriate. 
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The metal panels are a suitable material within the ADC Guidelines.  
 
Suggested Motion 
Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City Design Guidelines for 
New Construction, I move to find that the proposed window glazing and metal panel selections satisfy the 
BAR’s criteria and are compatible with these properties and other properties in the West Main Street 
ADC District, and that the BAR approves the application as submitted[.] 
 
...as submitted and with the following modifications/conditions:...  
 
Denial: 
Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including ADC District Design 
Guidelines for New Construction, I move to find that the proposed window glazing and metal panel 
selections does not satisfy or the BAR’s criteria and guidelines and is not compatible with this property 
and other properties in the West Main Street ADC District, and for the following reasons the BAR denies 
the application as submitted:… 
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Criteria, Standards, and Guidelines 
Review Criteria Generally 
Sec. 34-284(b) of the City Code states that,  
In considering a particular application the BAR shall approve the application unless it finds: 
(1) That the proposal does not meet specific standards set forth within this division or applicable 

provisions of the Design Guidelines established by the board pursuant to Sec.34-288(6); and 
(2) The proposal is incompatible with the historic, cultural or architectural character of the district in 

which the property is located or the protected property that is the subject of the application. 
 
Pertinent Standards for Review of Construction and Alterations include: 
1) Whether the material, texture, color, height, scale, mass and placement of the proposed addition, 

modification or construction are visually and architecturally compatible with the site and the 
applicable design control district; 

2) The harmony of the proposed change in terms of overall proportion and the size and placement of 
entrances, windows, awnings, exterior stairs and signs; 

3) The Secretary of the Interior Standards for Rehabilitation set forth within the Code of 
4) Federal Regulations (36 C.F.R. §67.7(b)), as may be relevant; 
5) The effect of the proposed change on the historic district neighborhood; 
6) The impact of the proposed change on other protected features on the property, such as gardens, 

landscaping, fences, walls and walks; 
7) Whether the proposed method of construction, renovation or restoration could have an adverse impact 

on the structure or site, or adjacent buildings or structures; 
8) Any applicable provisions of the City’s Design Guidelines. 
 
Pertinent Standards for New Construction and Additions: 
I: WINDOWS AND DOORS 

1) The rhythm, patterns, and ratio of solids (walls) and voids (windows and doors) of new buildings 
should relate to and be compatible with adjacent historic facades.  

a. The majority of existing buildings in Charlottesville’s historic districts have a higher 
proportion of wall area than void area except at the storefront level.  

b. In the West Main Street corridor in particular, new buildings should reinforce this 
traditional proportion.  

2) The size and proportion, or the ratio of width to height, of window and door openings on new 
buildings’ primary facades should be similar and compatible with those on surrounding historic 
facades. a. The proportions of the upper floor windows of most of Charlottesville’s historic 
buildings are more vertical than horizontal.  

3) b. Glass storefronts would generally have more horizontal proportions than upper floor openings.  
4) Traditionally designed openings generally are recessed on masonry buildings and have a raised 

surround on frame buildings.  New construction should follow these methods in the historic 
districts as opposed to designing openings that are flush with the rest of the wall.  

5) Many entrances of Charlottesville’s historic buildings have special features such as transoms, 
sidelights, and decorative elements framing the openings.  Consideration should be given to 
incorporating such elements in new construction.  

6) Darkly tinted mirrored glass is not an appropriate material for windows in new buildings within 
the historic districts.  

7) If small-paned windows are used, they should have true  
8) divided lights or simulated divided lights with permanently affixed interior and exterior muntin 

bars and integral spacers bars between the panes of glass.  
9) Avoid designing false windows in new construction.  
10) Appropriate material for new windows depends upon the context of the building within a historic 

district, and the design of the proposed building. Sustainable materials such as wood, aluminum-
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clad wood, solid fiberglass, and metal windows are preferred for new construction. Vinyl 
windows are discouraged.  

11) Glass shall be clear. Opaque spandrel glass or translucent glass may be approved by the BAR for 
specific applications 

 
M. MATERIALS AND TEXTURES 

1) The selection of materials and textures for a new building should be compatible with and 
complementary to neighboring buildings.  

2) In order to strengthen the traditional image of the residential areas of the historic districts, brick, 
stucco, and wood siding are the most appropriate materials for new buildings.  

3) In commercial/office areas, brick is generally the most appropriate material for new structures. 
“Thin set” brick is not permitted. Stone is more commonly used for site walls than buildings.  

4) Large-scale, multi-lot buildings, whose primary facades have been divided into different bays and 
planes to relate to existing neighboring buildings, can have varied materials, shades, and textures.  

5) Synthetic siding and trim, including, vinyl and aluminum, are not historic cladding materials in 
the historic districts, and their use should be avoided.  

6) Cementitious siding, such as HardiPlank boards and panels, are appropriate.  
7) Concrete or metal panels may be appropriate.  
8) Metal storefronts in clear or bronze are appropriate.  
9) The use of Exterior Insulation and Finish Systems (EIFS) is discouraged but may be approved on 

items such as gables where it cannot be seen or damaged.  It requires careful design of the 
location of control joints.  

10) The use of fiberglass-reinforced plastic is discouraged.  If used, it must be painted.  
11) All exterior trim woodwork, decking and flooring must be painted, or may be stained solid if not 

visible from public right-of-way. 
 
Appendix Prior BAR Actions: 
November 17, 2015 –This application was discussed as a preliminary discussion, which requires no 
motion. The BAR was not in favor of the demolition of the two structures because of their age, they 
provide scale, they relate to other historic buildings nearby, and they help tell the story of how West Main 
Street developed from residential to commercial. 
 
January 19, 2016 – The BAR approved (8-0) only the removal of the rear frame additions to 512-514 
West Main Street, and the removal of the front second floor addition to 600 West Main Street, as 
submitted.  
 
The BAR accepted (8-0) the applicant’s request for deferral of the application for a new mixed-use 
building.  
 
February 17, 2016 - The BAR approved (7-1 with Miller opposed) only the massing and siting as 
submitted. 
 
July 19, 2016 – No action was taken; the BAR made comments, some of which are summarized here: 

• The rear building should be a backdrop for the two historic buildings; like use of Corten 
• Like historic buildings – creating backdrop 

 
May 16, 2017- Schwarz moved: Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, 
including City Design Guidelines for New Construction, Rehabilitations, and for Site Design and 
Elements, I move to find that the proposed final details satisfy the BAR’s criteria and are compatible with 
this property and other properties in the West Main Street ADC District, and that the BAR approves the 
plan as submitted, with the stipulations that the BAR will review the lighting and the final metal finish in 
the field; signage to come back later; VLT 60 on south side only and VLT 70 everywhere else (the 
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exception was approved because the south, rear façade faces an unbuildable site and no pedestrian activity 
would come close to it). Balut seconded. 
Approved 8-1 with Miller opposed. 
 
January 17, 2018 - BAR approves the application as submitted, with the request that the applicant submits 
design details of how the lower stucco meets the ground. Balut seconded. Approved (4-2, with Miller and 
Schwarz opposed.) [Note: Detail was submitted and approved by the BAR via e-mail, March 28, 2018.] 
 
August 21, 2018 –  
Signs - BAR approves the signs in-concept with the provision that all illuminated signage shall appear to 
be lit white at night. Balut seconded. Approved (7-0) 
 
Brick infill at south elevation of 512-514 West Main Street - the BAR approves the application as 
submitted. Balut seconded. Approved (7-0.) 
 
Painting of brick at south and west elevations of 512-514 West Main Street - the BAR denies this portion 
of the application as submitted. Balut seconded. Denied (7-0.) 
 
Color scheme for Blue Moon diner and Mini Mart - moved to accept the applicant’s request for deferral. 
Balut seconded. Approved (7-0.) 
 
Storefront renovation of historic, single-story commercial additions- the BAR approves the application 
with the following modifications:  
• Maintain the wood storefront on Blue Moon diner (514 West Main Street), and replace in-kind 
• Approve the replacement of the aluminum door of the Blue Moon diner (514 West Main Street), with 

the door replacement to come back to be put on the consent agenda for the next month’s meeting 
• Approve the replacement of the storefront of the Mini Mart (600 West Main Street); lite pattern and 

dimensions to match existing 
• Approve the replacement of plywood panels [in Mini Mart storefront] with glazed panels 
 
November 20, 2018 – Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City 
Design Guidelines for New Construction, I move to find that the proposed storefront renovations and 
paint color selections satisfy the BAR’s criteria and are compatible with these properties and other 
properties in the West Main Street ADC District, and that the BAR approves the application as submitted. 
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